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1. Acronyms and Glossary of Terms

ACPO:

A-in-A

AFC:

BETA:

CARB:

CCF:

CGS:

CSD:

DORB:

IPSAS:

IRMF:

KRA:

MCDAs:

MDAs:

MSME:

NIFC: ,,

NHIF:

NSSF:

PFM:

PSSS:

RK-FINFA:

RTPs:

SACCOs:

SAGAs:

VFM:

Access to Govemment Procurement Opportunities

Appropriations in Aid

Agricultural Finance Corporation

Bottom-Up Economic Transformation Agenda

County Allocation of Revenue Bill

Climate Change Fund

Credit Guarantee Scheme

Central Securities Depository

Division of Revenue Bill

Intemational Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS)

Institutional Risk Management Framework

Key Result Areas

Ministries, Counties, Departments and Agencies

Ministries, Departments and Agencies

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises,

Nairobi Intemational Financial Centre'

National Hospital Insurance Fund

National Social Security Fund

Public Finance Management

Public Service Superannuation Scheme

Rural Kenya Financial Inclusion Facility

Restrictive Trade Practices

Saving and Credit Cooperative Organizations

Semi-Autonomous Government Agencies

Value for Money
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2. NATIONAL TRDASURY INFORMATION AND MANAGEMENT

(a) Background Information
The National Treasury was established via the Executive OrderNo. I of2023.The basis for establishment

ofthe National Treasury is found in Article 225 (i) ofthe Constitution ofKenya which states that an Act
of Parliament shall provide for the establishment, functions and responsibilities of the National Treasury.

This has been actualized in Section I I and l2 of the Public Finance Management (PFM) Act 2012.

At Cabinet level, the National Treasury is represented by the Cabinet Secretary for National Treasury and

Economic Planning, who is responsible for the general policy and strategic direction of the Ministry.

Vision
"Excellence in economic and public financial management, and development planning".

Mission
"To provide leadership in economic and public financial management, and development planning for
shared growth through formulation, implementation and monitoring of economic, financial and

development policies".

Core Values
The National Treasury is guided by the following core values: Customer Focus, Results Oriented,

Stakeholder Participation, Professionalism and Ethical Practices, Transparency and Accountability,
Integrity, Teamwork and Commitment all geared towards excellence in service delivery.

Mandatc of the National Treasury
The National Treasury derives its mandate from Article 225 of lhe Constitution, Public Finance

Management Act 2012 and the Executive Order No.1 6f 2023. The National'Treasury will be exectrting

its mandate'in consistency with any other legislation as ri\ay be developed or nifiewed by Parliament'from
time to time.

The core functions of the National Treasury as derived from the above legal provisions include:

(i) Overall Economic Policy Management;
(iD Management of Public Finance;
(iiD Formulation of National Budget;
(iv) Public Debt Management;
(v) Formulation and Maintenance of Govemment Accounting Standards;
(vi) Bilateral and Multilateral Financial Relations;
(vii) Capital Markets Policy;
(viii) Oversight over Revenue Collection;
(ix) Competition Policy Management; National Pensions Policy Management;
(x) Insurance Policy and Regulation;
(xi) Public Procurement and Disposal Policy;
(xii) Public Investment Policy and Oversight;
(xiii) DevelopmentandEnforcementofFinancial Govemance Standards;
(xiv) Financial Sector Analysis and Management including SACCOs, NSSF and NHIF;
(xv) FinanciallnstitutionsOversight;
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(xvi)

(xvii)
(xviii)

(xix)
(xx)

(ii)
(iii)
(iu)

Management of National and County Governments Financial Management System and

Standards;
Development of Kenya as an International Financial Centre;

Anti-Money Laundering Policy;
Custodian of National Govemment Assets and Properties; and,

Secretariat to Intergovernmental Budget and Economic Council'

Role of the National Treasury in the Devolved System of Government
The National Treasury is mandated by law to:

(i)

(v)

(vi)

Strengthen financial and fiscal relations between the National Govemment and County

Governments and support for county governments in performing their functions;
Issue guidelines on the preparation of county development planning;

Prepare the annual legislative proposals on intergovernmental fiscal transfers;

Provide logistical support to intergovemmental institutions overseeing intergovemmental

fiscal relations;
Coordinate the development and implementation of financial recovery plans for County
Govemments that are in financial distress;
Build capacity of County Govemments on public finance management matters for efficient,
effective and transparent financial management as well as planning, monitoring and

evaluation; and,
Administer the Equalization Fund.(vii)

(b) Key Management
The National Treasury day-to-day management is under the following key offices.

Office of the Principal Secretary
The Office of the Principal Socretary is responsible for the day{o-day administration of the National

Treasury operations and is the accounting oflicer. In addition, the Principal'Secretary is charged rvith the

responsibility ofproviding advice to the Cabinet Secretary in order to enhance efficiency and collective

responsibility.

Organizational structure of the National TreasurT
The National Treasury is organized into five (5) technical Directorates headed by Directors General and

(1) Administrative and Support Services Directorate headed by a Principal Administrative Secretary. Each

Director General is responsible for a Directorate comprising a cluster of Departments responsible for
related policy functions. In addition, the National Treasury has two independent departments namely

Public Procurement and Intemal Auditor General, headed by Directors and a Public Finance Management

Secretariat headed by a Programme Coordinator. The Directorates and Departments are as follows:

Directorate of Budget, Fiscal and Economic Affsirs
The Directorate is headed by a Director General, reporting to the Principal Secretary, National Treasury.

It is organized into the following four (4) Technical Departments each headed by a director:
(a) Budget Department;
(b) Macro and Fiscal Affairs Department;
(c) Financial and Sectoral Affairs Department; and,
(d) Inter-Govemmental Fiscal Relations Department.
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Directorate of Accounting Serviccs trnd Quality Assurance

The Directorate is headed by a Director General reporting to the Principal Secretary, National Treasury.

It is organized into the following four (4) Technical Departments each headed by a Director:
(a) Government Accounting Services;
(b) Information Financial Management Systems (IFMIS);
(c) National Sub-County Treasuries; and,
(d) Govemment Digital Payments Unit.

Directorate of Public Investment and Portfolio Management

The Directorate is headed by a Director General, reporting to the Principal Secretary. It is organized into
the following four (4) Technical Departments each headed by a Director:
(a) Government Investment and Public Enterprises;
(b) National Assets and Liabilities Management;
(c) Pensions Department; and,
(d) Public Investment Management Unit.

Directorate of Public Debt Management Office

The Directorate is headed by a Director General, reporting to the Principal Secretary. It is organized into
the following three (3) Technical Departments each headed by a Director:
(a) Resource Mobilization (Front Office);
(b) Debt Policy, Strategy and Risk Management (Middle Office); and,
(c) Debt Recording and Settlement @ack Office).

Directorate of Public Private Partnership

lhe Directorate is headed by a Director General, reporting to the Principal Secretary on matters relating
to Public Private Partnership.

Directorate of Administrative and Support Services (Common Shared Services)

The Directorate is headed by a Principal Administrative Secretary, reporting to the Principal Secretary. It
is organized into ten (10) specialized functions offering common shared services. The common shared
services ofthe National Treasury consist of functions that are not core to the National Treasury but offer
critical support services to the National Treasury. The functions include:
(a) Accounting;
(b) Finance;
(c) Human Resource Management and Development;
(d) Central Planning and Project Monitoring;
(e) Supply Chain Management;
(f) Legal;
(g) Public Communications;
(h) General Administration;
(i) Intemal Audit; and,

c) rcT.
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(d) Fiduciary Management

The key management personnel who held office during the financial year ended 30th June 2023 and who

had direct fiduciary responsibility were:

S/NO. Designation Name

Principal Secretary BSDr. Chris Kiptoo, C

z Principal Administrative Secretary Mr. Samson Wangusi, OGW

3 Director General, BFEA Mr. Albert Mwenda, HSC

4 Director General Accounti Services Mr. Bemard Ndung'u, MBS

5 Director General, PIPM Mr. Lawrence Kibet

6 Director General, PDMO Dr. Haron Sirma, EBS

7 Director General, PPP Mr. Christopher Kirigua, OGW

8 Director, Macro and Fiscal Affairs Department Mr. Musa Kathanie

9 Director, Budget Department Mr. Francis Anyona, OGW

10. Ag. Director, Financial and Sectoral Affairs Department Mr. Mark Obongo

I l. Director, Public Procurement Department Mr. Eric Korir
t2 Ag. Director, Intergovernmental

Depa(ment
Fiscal Relations Ms. Josephine Kanyi, HSC

13. Ag. Director, Internal Auditor General Ms. Jane Micheni
t4 Ag Director, Government Accounting Services Department Mr. Jona Wala
t< Ag. Director, National Sub County Treasuries Mr. Francis Kariuki, OGW

t6 Ag. Director, Information Financial Management System Mr. Mboni Kyallo

l7 As. Director, National Assets and Liability Management Mr. Geoffrey Malombe

18. Director, Government Investment and Public Enlgrprises Mr. Kennedy Ondieki

19. Director, Pensions Department Mr. Michael Kagika, EBS

20. Ag. Director, Public lnvestment Management Unit Dr. Patrick Mugo

21. Ag. Director, Resource Mobilization Department Mr. David Komen
1'> Director, Debt Policy, Strate$/ and Risk Management

ment
Mr. Daniel Ndolo

Mr. George Kariuki '23 As Direct6'r, Debt Recording and S'ettlement Department '

24 Director Administration Mr. Eliiah Song'ony

25. Head, Accounts Division Mr. George Gichuru

26. Head, Finance Mr. Ambrose Ogango

27. Senior Director SCM Mr. Caleb Ogot

28. Internal Auditor General, Intemal Audit Unit Ms. Lucy Mugwe

29. Princi I State Counsel l-r- I Unit Ms. Faith Pesa

30. Director, Human Resource Ma ent and Deve ent Mr. Benson Giuthua

31. Ag Director, Information Communication and Technology Ms. Lynn Nyongesa

32. Director, Central Planning and Project Monitoring
ment

Mr. Antony Muriu, HSC

33. Head Public Communications Ms. Catherine Njoroge

34. Programme Coordinator, Public Financial Management
Reform Secretariat

Mr. Julius Mutua

(e) Fiduciary Oversight Arrangemcnts

To manage the fiduciary risk, the National Treasury has put in place fiduciary oversight anangements

including setting up committees. The key oversight arrangements include:
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(i) Audit Committees

In line with the Public Finance Management Act, the National Treasury has established a Ministerial Audit
Committee comprising five members, three of whom are independent. The Committee provides overall

oversight and quality assurance including follow up on the effectiveness of implementation of audit

recommendations.

Further, the National Treasury established an audit committee comprising of officers from all departments

of the Ministry, under the chairmanship of the Senior Chief Finance Oflicer. The Committee reviews and

analyses all audit queries and makes recommendations on how to reduce fiduciary risks. In addition, the

committee prepares responses to all audit queries for presentation to the relevant committees of
parliament.

(ii) Public Financc Management Committees

Budget Implcmentation Stccring Committee

In order to effectively monitor the implementation of the National Govemment budget implementation,

the National Treasury has established a steering Committee chaired by the Cabinet Secretary, National
Treasury and Economic Planning. The Principal Secretaries for the National Treasury and State

Department for Economic Planning provide general oversight in the Budget implementation'

Budgct Implementation Tcchnical Committee

The Committee is chaired by the Principal Administrative Secretary and comprises the Directors General
and various Heads of Department. The Committee is responsible for monitoring the actual implementation

ofthe identified measures and programmes and reporting detailed progress on the same regularly.

Budget Implementation Ministerial Committee

To monitor the implementation of the Ministry's budget, programmes and activities, the National Treasury
has appointed a committee comprising of officers from all the Departments of the Ministry. The
Committee reviews and analyses the progress made by Departments in the implementation of budget and

the planned programmes and activities and advises the management accordingly.

(iiD Senior Management Committce

To monitor the implementation of the Ministry's programmes and performance, the National Treasury has

appointed Senior Management Committee comprising of Directors General. The Committee receives
reports from departments, build consensus on National Treasury responses to emerging issues, challenges
and risks and ensures that the decisions made are implemented in a timely manner. Additionally, the

Treasury constituted Ad hoc Committees to handle specific assignments in the Financial Year 2022123.

(iv) Othcr oversight activities

Other fiduciary oversight arrangements include the following committees with specific objectives;
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Project Implementation Committee

To monitor the implementation of the Govemment's Infrastructure Projects, the National Treasury has

established a Project Steering Committee Comprising Principal Secretaries from implementing Ministries
and appointed a technical committee comprising officers from the technical departments of the Ministry.
The Committees review and analyse the progress made by ministries in the implementation of
domestically and extemally funded projects and advises accordingly.

Parliamentary Activities

In order to effectively manage the parliamentary activities relating to the Ministry, the National Treasury
has established a committee and designated a liaison officer to coordinate the activities under the Office
of the Cabinet Secretary.

Development Partner Ovcrsight

To effectively manage Offrcial Development Assistance to the Govemment, the National Treasury has,

under the Public Debt Management, a department responsible for all matters relating to Development
Partners. The Department has various Units that coordinate different development partner activities in the
Country.

Public Financial Management Sector Working Group

To facilitate the implementation of financial management reforms, the National Treasury has appointed
senior officers to the Public Financial Management Sector Working Group. The Committee plays an

oversight role in the implementation of financial reforms in the public service in collaboration with the
development partners.

Monitoring and Evaluation

The Ministry undertakes monitoring and evaluation exercises to establish progress made in the

implementation of various programmes and projects including those that are funded by the development
partners.
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Thc National Treasury Headqur rters
P.O. Box 30007- 00100,
Treasury Building,
Harambee, Avenue
NAIROBI, KtrNYA

The \ational Treasury Contacts
Telephone : (25 4)020 -225229 9
Email: Communicati so.ke
Website: www.treasury. so.ke

Thc National Treasury Bankers
Central Bank of Kenya
Haile Selassie Avenue
P.O. Box 60000
City Square 00200
NAIROBI, KEI\TYA

Independen t Auditors
Auditor General
Offrce of the Auditor General
Anniversary Towers, University Way
P.O Box 30084
GPO 00100
NAIROBI, KENYA

Principal Legal Adviser
The Attomey General "'

Stilte Law Offrce ''"
Harambee Avenue
P.O. Box 40112
City Square 00200
NAIROBI, KEI\IYA
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3. STATEMENTOFGOVERNANCE

The National Trcasury Leadership Structure

(i) Brief of Key Leadership Structure
iire National Treazury and Economic Planning is divided into two entities: The National Treasury and

State Departrnent for 
-Economic 

Planning. It is represented by the Cabinet Secretary who is responsible

for the general policy and strategic direction ofthe Ministry. ! l

At the top management level, the National Treasury is headed by the Principal Secretary who is the

accounting offrcer and is responsible to the Cabinet Secretary in the performance of his duties. The

National it"usu.y has six Directorates headed by Director Generals and a Principal Administrative

Secretary who is responsible for Administration and Suppo( Services.

Cabinet Secretara, The National Treasury & Economic
Planning

Principal Secretary, th National Treasury

rr
, Director Gperal

Di{ectorate of lGounting
Servfces & Quality Assurance

Director General?f
fAirecto rate of PublldDebt

Management Office

Director General

ireltorate of Budget, fiscal
ahd Economlc Affairs

D

Director General

Directorate of Public, Private
Partnership

Principal Administrative Secretary

Directorate of Administrative
Services

Director General

Directorate of Public
Investment & Portfolio
r Management

(ii) Management Committees Established and Their Roles
The National Treasury has appointed managements committees to monitor the

progranrmes, projects and report on their performance' They include:

x
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Top Managcment Committee
Top Management Committee comprises of Cabinet Secretary, Principal Secretary and Directors General.
The Committee receives reports from departments, build consensus on National Treasury responses to
emerging issues, challenges and risks and ensures that the decisions made are implemented in a timely
manner.
(iii) The Audit Committee
In line with the Public Finance Management Act, the National Treasury has established a Ministerial Audit
Committeb comprising of the Chairperson and four members, of which tlree are independent. The
members were appointed on 156 December,2022.

The Committee provides overall oversight and quality assurance including follow up on the effectiveness
of implementation of audit recommendations.

The Committee is active and meets on a quarterly basis to deliberate on their functions.

(iv) Risk Management, compliance, conflict of intcrest

The National Treasury appointed risk champions who have been trained. The processes of developing a

risk management framework have commenced.

(v) Rccent Trainings and development in governance for those in key leadership
The National Treasury supported those in key leadership positions to attend leadership and strategic
management courses at the Kenya school of Government and other reputable intemational institutions.

(vi) Publicparticipationactivities
The National Treasury underscores the importance for public participation as provided for under the
Constitution of Kenya and Public Finance Management (PFM) Act, 2012 by giving Kenyans opportunities
to interrogate proposed amendments to the PFM Act,2012 and make, submissions on their,views for
consideration in policy making ald implementation so as to strengthen aqd deepen good gover4ance. The
National Treasury canied out Public Sector Hearings for the Proposed Budget for the FY 2022/23 and the
medium term by holding both physical meetings and virtual hearings. In addition, it carried out five (5)
public participations in all regions in the country on the proposed Privatization Bi|l,2023. The National
Treasury provided an opportunity to all Kenyans across the country to interrogate the Public Finance
Management Acl2012 Amendments that aimed at settling debt anchored in line with intemational best
practices.

("ii) Compliance with laws and regulations
The National Treasury complies with the Constitution of Kenya, all applicable laws and regulations in
line with acceptable national and international standards as well as its intemal policies. The National
Treasury identified and documented all laws and regulations that are applicable in its operations.

The National Treasury through the legal unit is planning to carry out the first legal compliance audit in
September 2023124 FY, to establish the level of adherence of applicable laws, rules, regulations and
standards, and make recommendations for implementation.
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4. STATEMENT BY THE CABINET SECRETARY

In accotdance with Section 12 of the Public Finance Management Act,20l2, the National Treasury is

responslble for coordinating the country's economic and financial management' Overall, the National

Treasury has continued to maintain a iolicy environment that is conducive to economic growth and

development of the country. r

T\e FY 2022123 marked the transition from the previous administration to the current one. The first half

of the Fy 2022123 was marked by slow implementation of programmes and projects due to inadequate

revenue resources and transition riated chalienges. There was a general slowdown ofeconomic activities.

This was occasioned by extemal shocks including supply chain problems and prolonged Covid-I9 impacts

in the global arena; climate change occasioning the worst drought in 40 years and the ongoing Russia -
Ukaine conflict.

-

The Kenyan economy slowed down to a growth of 4.8 percent in 2022 comporcd to a revised growth of
i.6 pero"nt in 2021. 'i'tre slowdown was due to the impact of climate change that led to drought affecting

agricultUral productivity which also contributed to a slowdown in growth in manufacturing and in

w]rolesale and retail trade. The growth in 2022 was spread across all sectors ofthe economy but was more

pronoutced in service-oriented activities.

The eccmomy remained resilient and expanded by 5.3 percent in the first quarter of2023, compared to 6.2

percent in uii*ilu. quarter in 2022 (Churt 1), The growth was mainly supported by a rebound of the

agriculUrre sector and continued resiiience of service sectors. All economic sectors recorded positive

growths, though the magnitudes varied across activities'

Economic Growth

Chart 1: Qtiirrterly Real GDP Gtowth Rates
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Activities in the agriculture, forestry and fishing sub-sector expanded by 5.8 percent in the first quarter of
2023 compared to a contraction of I .7 percent in the first qtarter of 2022 (Table l). The significantly

improved performance ofthe sector was attributable to favorable weather conditions that led to enhanced

production, especially that offood crops. The performance was evident in the significant increase in export

ofvegetables and fruits recorded during the first quarter of2023. However, the sector's performance was

somewhat curtailed by decline in milk deliveries to processors, production oftea, coflee and sugarcane.

The performance ofthe industry sector slowed down to a growth of2.4 percent in the first quarter of2023
compared to a growth of4.4 percent in the first quarter of2022. This was mainly on account ofa slowdown
in activities in the manufacturing; electricity and water supply; and construction sub-sectors.

Manufacturing sub-sector expanded by 2.0 percent in the first qvarler of 2023 compared to a growth of
3.8 percent in a similar quarter in 2022. The growth was mainly supported by the manufacture of food
products that included bakery products and processing and preservation of fish. In the non-food
manufacturing, the gro*th perfonnance was supported by substantial growth in the manufacture ofbasic
metals and fabricated metal products.

Electricity and Water Supply sub-sector expanded by 2.3 percent in the first quarter of2023 compared to

3.2 percent growth registered in the first quarter of 2022. The growth in the sub-sector was supported by

increased generation of electricity from renewable sources such as geothermal and wind that more than

offset the decline in generation from hydroeiectric sources. Activities of the construction sub-sector

expanded by 3.1 percent in the first quarter of2023 compared to a 6.0 percent growth in the first quarter

of 2022. The slowdown in growth of the sector's performance in the first quarter of2023 was mirrored in
the decline of volume of cement consumption and imports of various construction materials such as

bitumen and iron and steel.

The activities in the services sector remained strong in the first quarter of 2023 growing by 6.0 percent

compared to a growth of 8.5 percenl in a similar period, in 2022. This perfqpmance was largely .,

characterized by, significant growths, in Accommodation and Food Service; Information and ,,

Communication Technology; Transportation and Storage; Financial and Insurance; and Wholesale and

Retail Trade Sub-Sectors.

Accommodation and Food Service sub-sector is estimated to have expanded by 21.5 percent in the first
quarter of 2023 compared to 40.1 percent growth recorded in the first quarter of 2022. Activities in the

sub-sector have been growing steadily owing to dissipation of the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic that

consequently led to improved economic environment in most tourist destinations, Transportation and

Storage sub-sector grew by 6.2 percent in the first quarter of2023 compared to a growth of 7.7 percent in
a similar quarter in 2022. The growth was attributed to improved performance in most of the subsectors,

especially transportation ofpassenger and freight through rail.

Information and communication sub-sector recorded a growth of 8.7 percent in the first quarter of 2023

compared to a growth of 9.0 percent in the first quarter of 2022. This growth was mainly supported by

increase in mobile money transfers, domestic voice traflic, domestic Short Messaging Services (SMS$,
and utilized international bandwidth. Financial and Insurance sub-sector grew by 5.8 percent in the first
quarter of 2023 compared to 17.0 percent growth in the corresponding qtarter of 2022.

The Govemment undertook reprioritization and cost-cutting measures to ensure smooth implementation
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ofpriority programmes for the remainder ofthe financial year.

Consequently, we managed to bring the fiscal dehcit from the planned 6.2Vo under the previous

administration to about 53% of the GDP by the closure of FY 2022123. Moving forward in the FY

2023124, the fiscat deficit is planned to come further down lo 4.4%o of the GDP.

TheFY 202212023 closed on a strong and positive note with total revenue collection by the year to June

2023 growing by 7.3% to amount to Kshs.2.36 trillion (16.3% of GDP). Of these ordinary revenues

collected amounted to Kshs.2.04 trillion which was an annual growth of 6.4 o/o and represented a
performance rate of 95.lyo against target. All tax revenue targets recorded positive growth, an indication
of continued recovery in revenue collection.
Total expenditure by end ofFY 2 022123 amounted to Kshs.3.21 trillion against target of Kshs.3.36 trillion
translating to a shortfall in expenditure of Kshs.l48.4 billion.

Critical payments made that had significant impact at the grassroots, included:
(i) 100% payment of equitable share was disbursed to the 47 County Governments amounting to

Kshs.399.6 billion. This figure included the equitable share of Kshs.370.0 billion and anears of
KSh.29.6 billion from the previous year;

(ii) The entire allocation of KSh. 47.2 billion to the National Government Constituency Development

Fund (NGCDF); and,
(iii) 100% Cash transfer to the Elderl to cater for their needs including for food, health and upkeep.

Additionally, all arrears for cash transfers to Orphans and Vulnerable Children (OVCs) amounting

to Kshs. l6Billion were funded.

Inflation
Year-on-year overall inflation rate has been above the 7.5 percent upper bound ofthe policy target range

since Jwre 2022.Inflation rate remained sticky at 7.9 percent in June 2023 same as June 2022 driven by

relatively higher food and fuel prices. Overall,annual average inflation increased to 8.8 porcent in June

2023 compared to 6.3 percent recorded in June,2022.

Interest Rates
Monetary policy stance remains tight to anchor inflation expectations due to the sustained inflationary
pressures, increased risks to the inflation outlook, the elevated global risks such as financial market

volatility, and their potential impact on the domestic economy. In this regard, the Central Bank Rate was

raised from 9.50 percent to 10.50 percent in June 2023.
Short-term interest rates have remained relatively stable despite tight liquidity conditions. The interbank

rate incrcased to 9.6 percent in June 2023 compared to 5.1 percent in June 2022 while the 91-day Treasury

Bills rate was at 11.5 percent compared to 7.9 percent over the same period.

Exchange Rates
The foreign exchange market has largely remained stable despite the tight global financial conditions

attributed to strengthening of the US Dollar and uncertainties regarding the ongoing Russian-Ukraine

conflict. Due to the strong dollar, the exchange rate to the Kenya shilling like with all world currencies

has weakened to exchange at KSh. 139.7 in June 2023 compared to KSh. 117.3 in June 2022. Against the

Euro, the Kenya shilling weakened to exchange at KSh 151.4 in June 2023 compared to KSh. 124.1 in
June 2022 while against the Sterling Pound the Kenyan shilling also weakened to exchange at KSh. 176.3

compared to KSh. 144.8, over the same period.
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The National Government policy on clearance of pending bills continues to be in force. The
National Treasury is cun'ently developing a cornprehensive strategy to clear outstanding stock of
verified pending bills of the National Government over the medium tenn. In this strategy,
deficiencies and lapses that led to accumulation ofpending bills rvill be addressed. In the FV
2023/24 all Minist.ies, I)epartnrents and Agencies (MDAs) are expected to clear all the
expcnditure carryovels frorn FY 2022t23 as a first charge befbre payrnelt ofcommitments ofthe
current financial year.

Bottom-Up Dconornic Transformation Agcnda (BtrTA)

Going forward, MDAs will be required to prioritize allocations towards the achievement of the
BETA priorities while addressing the policy, legal, regulatory, and governance issues as a matter
ofpriority to ensttte optimal use ofresources in execution ofthe planled interventions. BETA is
geared towards econonric turn around and inclusive growth and aims to increase investments in at
least five sectors with high potential inrpact on the economy as well as household welfarc. These
include: -
(i) Agricultural Transfonnation;
(iD Micro, Small and Mediurn Enterprise (MSME);
(iii) Flousing and Settlernent;
(iv) Health care; and,.,
,(v) Digital superhighWay and Creative Industty.

Pcnding Ilills
The total outstanding national govermnent pending bills as at 30'l,June, 2023 arnounted to KSh.
567.5 billion. 'l'hese conrprise ofI(sh. 443.6 billion (78.2 percent) and Ksh.l23.9 billion (21.g
percent) for the State Corporations (SCs) and Ministries/State De partrnentVother governrnent
entities respectively. The sCs pending bills include paynrent to contractors/projects, suppliers,
unrelnltted statutory and other deductions, pension arrears fol Local Authorities Pension Trust,
and others. MinistrieVstate Departments and other government entities pending bills constitutes
mainly ofhistorical pending bills for the last two years.

The BETA priorities should therefore be mainstrearned into the regular programmes of Ministries,
Deparhnents and Agencies. The planning and budgeting should embrace the value chain approach
ensuring that there are no funding gaps, no duplications and allows for efficiency in the use of
resources-

1)-S - o5->s)-3
Signnturc
NJUGTJNA NDI]NG'U, CBS
CAI}INDT SECRETARY

NOMICPLANNING

Datc

THE NATIONAL TREAST,IRY AND ECO
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5. STATtrMENT ]]Y TI'IE PIUNCIPAL SECIIETARY

Budgct pcrfo rrnan ce

The National Treasury expenditure (inclusive of A-in-A) fol the FY 202223 stood at KSh.

i0z.o:z bittion against an approved budget of Ksh. 147.56 billion translating to an overall

ibsorption rate of 69.43 perCent as demonstrated in the pie clrart below. This translates to an

inrprovernent of 6.43 percent fron 63Yo recorded in the financial year 2021/22. Chart 2 below
presents tlre Natiorral Tteasury total budget execution for lheFY 2022/23.

Chart 2: Total Allocation against Total Expcnditure (I(Sh. Billions)

Budget execution recurrent and developemt
69.34

,..'t
'r*tr)

747.56 ,'

c 2022/23 Gross Allocation o 2022/23 Total Expenditure ! 2022/23 Absorption Rate (,t,

When disaggregated by recurrent and developnrent expenditule, the budget execution indicates

tlrat recurrent expendituI.e (inclusive of A-in-A) stood at I(Sh. 48.08 billion in the FY 2022t23

against an allocation ofKSh 61.60 billion translating to 78.05 % absorption rate as shown in Chart
3 below.

Chart 3: National Treasury rccurrent' budgct execution for thc FY 2022123 (KSh.
Billions)

Recurent budget outturn- FY 2022123

78.09

.i/

rr

l
I61,50

d 2OZ2|Z3 Approved Budget o 2022/23 Gxpendltu@ . 2022123 % Absorptlon

On the other hand, developnrent expenditure (inclusive of A-in-A) absorption was KSh 54.23

billion against an allocation of KSh 85.96 billion recording an absorption rate of 63.09% as

illustrated in Chart 4 below. The underabsoprtion in development expenditure is attributed to
exchequer challenges.
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Chart 4: National Treasu develo ment bud

Development budget outturn- FY 2022123

68.09

. 2022123 Approved Budget t 2022123 Expenditure . 2022/23 %Absorption

Budget execution for GoK Funds (Net of A-in-A)
The National Treasury expenditure for GoK funds (exclusive ofA-in-A) for the FY 2022123 stood atKSh.
67.58 billion against an allocation ofKSh. 93.66 billion. This translates to an absorption rate of72.15 per

cent. GoK development expenditure for the year was KSh. 23.89 billion against an allocation ofKSh.
4l .70 billion. This constitutes and absorption rate of 57 .28 per cent. On the other hand, recurrent GoK
budget recorded an expenditure of KSh. 43.69 billion against an allocation of KSh. 51.96 billion
translating to an absorption of 84.09 per cent. Chart 5 below illustrates budget execution for GoK funded
budget for the FY 2022123.

execution for the FY 2022123 h. Billions)

Chart 5: bud et execution for GoK funded bu et for the FY 2022123 h. Billions

GoK budget execution for FY 2022/23
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Budget execution for externally funded resourc es for FY 2022123

The extemally funded projects recorded an absorption of Ksh. 2.18 billion against an allocation ofKSh.
7.44 billion tanslating to an absorption rate of 29.24%. The under absorption in extemally funded

,resources was attributed to: transfer ofa budget ofKSh. 2 billion for the National Treasury Dongo Kundu

rSpecial Economic Zones to Ministry of Transport and Infrastructure; inability to secure donor

,commitments; differences in accounting period ofthe donor; and lack ofno objection from the donors for
some prcjects. Chart 6 below presents the budget execution for externally funded resources for the FY

2022123.

Chart Q Eudget execqlion for ex(ernaly fqndg{ 1eg-oqrce;f9r \Y lp?.2DJ (KSh' Billion$

Budget execution for externally funded proiects

29.24

t 2022123 Approved Budget | 2022123 Expendltute t 2022123 %Absorptlon
_l

Budget Executioh by Programmes , ''

The National Treasury impleme ntedthe2022/23 budget within seven economic programmes. These were:

General Administration, Flar-ing and Support Services; Public Financial Management; Economic and

Financia,l Policy Formulation and Management; Market Competition and Creation of an Enabling

Business Environment; Govemment Clearing Services; Rail Transport; and Marine Transport. The latter

three programmes were transferred to the National Treasury by an executive dtective that merged the

pors,ialiand pipeline services in the RY 2021122. These three programmes have since been transferred

back to the Ministry of Transport and Infrastructure and will no longer be under the National Treasury

reporting in the FY 2023124.

As demonstrated in the chart below, Market Competition and Creation of Enabling Business Environment

Programrne had the highest absorption at 96.47 percent followed by Economic and Financial Policy

Formulation and Management at 75.55 percent, Rail Transport at74.43 percent, General Administration

at 71.23 percent, Public Financial Management at 59.31 percent, Govemment Clearing Service at 5.67

percent, and Marine transport at zero (0) per cent. The lack ofabsoprtion in Govemment Clearing Service

and Marine Transport is due to the transfer of the functions to Ministry of Tranport and Infrastracture in
the FY 2A22123. Chart 7 below illustrates the National Treasury budget execution by programme for the

FY 2024n.
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chart 7r Budget execution (KSh. Billions) and proportion (%) by Programme (KSh. Dillions)
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Kcy Achievements

The National Treasury registered Key Achievements during the Financial Yex 2022123. These include:

I . Under General Administration, Planning and Support Services programme' the National
Treasury leased 4,023 security vehicles for the National Police Service towards enhancing security;

2. Under the Public Financial Management programmer the National Treasury mobilized a total of
KSh. 22.6 billion worth ofprivate capital under Public Private Partnerships; mobilized KSh. 8.8 billion
under the Global Fund towards treatment of HIV, TB and Malaria, registered

29,435 AGPO Enterprises; and digitized an additional 4,687 govemment services; and conducted 269

Value for Money Audits;

147.563.94 0.71

2.91
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3, Under [conomic and Financial Policy Formulation and Management progrsmme, the National
Treasury implemented fiscal consolidation initiatives that led to realization of 5.7 % fiscal deficit
against a target of 63% of GDP; developed the Nairobi International Financial Centre (NIFC)
Guidelines and Regulations; established Climate Change Fund (CCF) in 7 Counties; and provided
197,960 No. of Clients with Agricultural Finance Corporation (AFC) loans in both wholesale,and

retail lending against a target of 196,617; ald,

4. Under Market Competition and Creation of an Enabling Business Environment programme'
the National Treasury through Competition Authority of Kenya determined 100olo merger and

acquisitions applications and developed one (l) Restrictive Trade Practices Guideline and one (1)

Consumer Protection Guideline.

Emerging Issues

The emerging issues that impacted or may impacted the operations of the National Treasury include:

(i) The Ongoing Russia-Ukraine conflict, land lingering effects of the COVID-I9 pandemic and

drought has heightened global inflation and resulted in tightening monetary policy and persistent

supply chain disruptions. This hampered achievement oftargets for the period under review;

(ii) Technological advancement in the ICT sector presented opportunities to leverage ICT innovations
in the conduct ofbusiness as well as risks relating to governance and data secudty;

(iii) The proliferation of fake news on social media platforms, which have a wider audience and faster

response time sometimes portrayed the National Treasury in a negative manner; and,

(iv) .Development of Seclor specific Project Appraisal Manuals: although the National Treasury

, 
.jeveloped a generic rqanual to guide the invBstment appraisal proqesses, it has now emelged that
there is need to develop sector specific methodological appraisal manuals to guide sector specific
analysis. Therefore, the National Treasury is required to develop over 40 sector specific appraisal

manuals to guide the over 40 sectors on the nuanced appraisal process.

Challenges
Some of the challenges the National Treasury faced while implementing the 2022123 budget include:-

(i) Resource Constraint continues to persist and affects implementation of budgets
The rationalization ofthe budget, occasioned by underperformance of revenue collection and emerging
govemment priorities affected the implementation of programmes on training, hospitality, transfer of
conditional grants to County Govemments and to semi-autonomous Agencies (SAGAs). The

underperformance in revenue also caused delays in disbursement of funds by the National Treasury to

MCDAs. The underperformance of county govemments own source revenue led to oveneliance on
transfers from the National Government occasioning more pressure on the exchequer.
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Shortage of Kcy Technical Staff continues to affect operational efliciency in cor.c mandate

Despite recruitment of staffacross certain cadres, the National Treasury continues to experience
staffshortage across all cadres against authorized establishment. As indicated in the ppeiational
perfonnance bn human resource, the curent staffcapacity is at 5g%. This is mainry attributed to
natural attrition. The pranned recruitment and promotion of staffby the appointinj u"t},orit[,
has been slow hence affecting service derivery and succession management initiatives.

(ii) operating cnvironment.is. marifested, among others, by shortage of o{Iice space especia y
for key technical staffand, inadequate ."rour.i-ng of the Monitoring and Evaluation function.

I: i1:"gr,tf above emerging issues and chafienges and ensure successfur imprernentation or
the Nattonal lieasury goals and objectives, the Ministry undertook the following: -

(a) continued to implement borrowing poricy that provides for domestic borrowing to plug the
financing gap created by non-perfoiming ievenue;

(b) Tfre effects ofthe Eastern Europe conflict on inflation and cost of living were moderated bythe Government's interventions incruding among others, making feriirizer avairable and
improve productivity in counties and regions thaiplant in the sho-rt rain season, where the
G^o-Y"ln!9!! itported 1.5 million 50 kg bigs of fertilizers and distributed rhem at ; lower cost
ofKsh 3,500;

(c) continued to implement succession pranning towards progressivery filring in staff shortage,
continued training and ti*rery promotions. As at the 

"na 
ortn" Financiariear zoniil,-*e

]valio.nal rreasury had enhanced its sraff capacity to g0% ofauthorized establishmlni irom
30% in the Firian cial year 2020/21; aiid,

(d) Engaged other development partners for concessional loans and grants as ivell as pursued
strategies to finance government projects.

Recom mclrdations

(i) There is need for increasing allocation to the National Treasury to facilitate effective
mobilization of resources to finance public expenditure particulirly towards facilitation
and implementation of post covl,i-Ig Economic Recovery st;ategy and .."iJi"g
Government priorities;

(ii) Reforms in Public Financial Management and taxation shall be sustained to enable the
National rreasury to rnobilize adiquate financiar resources and enhance absorption
capacity;

(iiD continued sustained implementation of succession planning, especially with respect to
recruitment of key tecirnical staff to act i"ue opii"t ,tufR.g l"r"t, for en[anced
operational effi ciency;

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Strengthening Monitoring and Evaluation Framework and capacity;

Continued leveraging on ICT to ensure timely delivery oftargets; and,

Implementing the project rationarization to achieve optimar project portfolio and increase
fiscal space.
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Going forward, the National rlasury will continuc to implcment fiscal policies that pursue
gtowth.friendly fiscat consolidatipn to prescrve dcbt sust4inability. This witt bc achicved througtl
enhancing revcnuc collcction anfl curtailing non+orc cxpcnditurcs white prioritiping high-imilci
Y1lyI ,3"-"S!$^"*p*ditu{c. As such, fiscat deficil is projccted to dcclinc from 5.7 pcrcent
of GDP in FY 2022123 to 4.4 pcrccnt of GDp inFy 2023124.

Signature..
DR. CHRIS

*iJ
^

Date
, cBs

PRINCIPAL TAR NATIONAL

t,;,I /,.1,
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6. STATEMENT OF PIIRFORMANCB AGAINST I'REDITERMINED OBJBCTIVES FOR

THE FY 2022123

Introduction
Section 8 I (2) (f1 of the Public Finance Management Act, 2012 requires that, at the end of each financial
year, the accounting officer when preparing financial statements of each National Govemment National

i.easuryin accord;ce with the itandards and formits prescribed by the Public Sector Accodnting

Standards Board includes a statement of the national government entity's performance against

predetermined objectives. The key development objectives of the National Treasury's 2018-2022

Strategic Plan are to:

(a) Strengthen organization capacity for quality service delivery;
(b) Enhance mobilization, allocation and utilization ofpublic resources;

(c) Ensure stable and sustainable macro-economic environment; and,

(d) Ensure market struclures that encourage competition and orderly conduct ofbusiness;

Progrcss on Attainment of Strategic Dcvelopmcnt Objectives
For purposes of implementing and cascading the above development objectives to specific sectors, a[[ the

development objectives were made specific, measurable, achievable, realistic and time-bound (SMART)
and converted into development outcomes. Attendant indicators were identified for reasons of tracking
progress and performance measurement: Below we provide the progress on attaining the stated objectives:

Table 1: Performance against Prcdetermined Objectivcs for 2022/23
MDA
6cncral
Administrrtion,
Planning end

Support
Scrviccs. '

Public Finonciol
ilfunsgcmcnt

CortuncntsPcrformgnccSEstlgic Objcclivc Outcodc Indicrtor -::
Target surpassedNo. ofvehicles leased lnFY 202U23, 4,023 scc']tity

vehiclcs were leased for the

NationalPolice Servicc

towards enhancing sccurity

agairlrt I target of3,477
Targct was not
achieved

In FY 202223 the ordinary

revenue as a percentage of
CDP collected was l6%
against a target of l7.l%

Ordinary,revenue as a

perccntagc ofGDP

The eligible public
servants were on
boarded in real time

t00vo7o level ofcompliance to
PSSS

Pensions claims were

processed within 60 days of
submission.

Target ochievcd

Efficient and

effective service

delivery

No. of Pension claims

processed

To enhance iostitutional

and human resource

capacity for quality

dclivery of services

I achieved against a target of
I

Budget presented to
padiament.

Annual National Budgct
presentcd to Parliament

by 3Oth April 2023

I Extemal Public Dcbt Stock

& Register on tle TNT
website published against a

target of I

Target achicved and
ptrblished in the
website

No. of Published Extemal

Public Debt Stock &
Register on the TNT
website

Target dchieved.

bcnchmark bonds are

determined by thc

issucr to create

Iiquidity and have
cstablished to attract

l2 bonds issued against a

target of 12

To increase the rcliability,
stability and soundness of
the financial sector

Incrcased

reliability and

soundness ofthe
financial scctor

No. ofbenchmark bonds

issued
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IDA Prog'lm

rnomic rnd
rncirl Policy
mulation rnd
nogcmcnt

morc liquidity over

timc than othcr bonds

Targct achievcdoZ Of msturc serviclablc
public debt scrviced

I 00oZ mature scrviccable

public debt serviced achicved

against I targct of 100%

Tsrget achievcdNo. of Audit Committccs

Cspacity Built.
3l Audit Conunittccs

Cspacity Built
Targct wai not
rchicved

Amount mobilircd in
KSh. (Billion)

A totalofKSh. 22.6 billion
worlh ofprivatc capitsl was

mobilized following private

scctor investrncnls against I
target of50 billion
6 Million doses of ACT
uealmcnt wcrc issued in lic
Fv 2022n3.

The total number of
confirmcd malaris

cases mnually is

about 6 million. The
number ofdoses of
ACT distributcd to
cnsurc continuouS

supply at fscility is 7
million doses

annually, On a
quartcr about 1.5

million doses are

issued b facilitics.

No, ofPcople receiving

ACT (Millions)

Regislered 29,435 ACPO
Enterpriscs sgainst a targct of
20,000

Over achicvement is
duc to stabilizstion of
system uptime and

deployrhent of staff
at lluduma Cente. to
assist in cnterprise
registration

No. ofRegistcred AGPO
Enterpriscs

4687 additional Covcrnmcnt
paymcnts digitized from 397

as at June 2022

Target surpassdNo. ofadditional
Govamment Payments

Digitized
Annualborrowing
plan developcd

No ofAnnual Borrowing
Plans

I annual borrowing plan

achievcd against a iarget of I
I Medium Tcrm debt srarcgy
dcveloped medium stratcgy

sgainst a target of I

Target achievedNo. of Stlategie.t

Target achievcdNo. ofGovemmcnt
Entities cspacity built on

IRMF

26 Govcmmcnt Ertities
capacity built on lostitutional
Risk Management

Framcwork (IRMF)
Target schievcdNo. ofVFM Audits

reports

Conducted 269 Valuc for
Money Audits. Talget
surpassed due to incrcssed

requesls

7.9o2 against a policy rangc

target of 5 +-2.5.

Targct was out of
policy mnge due to
highcr food and fuel
priccs

Inflation mte (7o)To .nsurc a stablc

mrroeconomic
cnvironment

Stablc

macroeconomic
cnvironmcnt

Months of import cover 4.5 months ofimport covcr

8gainst a t rgetof5.8
Target not met due to

high demand for
forcign cxchange
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MDA Program

Mrrkct
Compctition rnd
Crcation of f,n

Enabling
Busincss
Environmcnl

CommcntsStmtcgio Objcctive Outcome Indic6tor
Target surpassed du€

to fiscal

consolidation

initiatives such as

budget

rationalization in the

secohd Quarter

(5.7) % ofGDP against thc

target 0f6.3%

oZ of fiscal dcficit

Ta.get achievedI Nairobi Intemational

Financial Ccntrc (NIFC)

Guidelines and regulations
prepared against I target of I

No. ofCuidelines and

regulations prcpared

Target 6chievedI Legislative framework for

NIFC and financial services

sector devcloped against a

target of I

No. oflcgal frameworks

developcd

Remaining Counties

to be targcted in the

tY 208124

7 Counties have established

their Climate Changc Fund

(ccF)

No. ofcounties with CCF

'I arget achievcd in

2nd quarter
Preparcd the County

Allocation of Revenue Bill
(CARB) 2023 & Division of
Rcvenue Bill (DORB) 2023.

County Allocation of
Revenue Bill(CARB) &
Division of Revenue Bill
(DORB)

A total of 197,960 client

outreach was achieved in

both wholesale and retail

lcnding

The AFC client
outreach was

achieved against a
target ol196,616

No. of Clients accessing

Agricultural Finance

Corporation (AFC) Ioans

The corporation

achieved against a
t6rg€t ofKSh. 4,000
Million

KSh. 4,1l2 Million lran
issucd to clientt

lran amount issued to
clients in KSh. millions

82oZ loan repayments was

achieved sgainst a target of
b57o ofdirbrrs"rn"nts

AFC willstrive to
collect the balance of
18%of
disbrttsements in the
w 2023n4

Loan rcpayments as 7o

of disbursemcnts

KSh. 9.2 Trillion. Target

within tie ceiling
Trrget within the
ceiling

Public Debt at S KSh. I0
trillion

t00v" Target achieved7o ofCovemment
importVexports cleared

within 9 days at the ports

and 2 days at thc atports
Target schievedoZ of Mcrger and

acquisitions 6pplications

determined

1007o mergcr and

acquisitions spplications

determined

Target achievedMerger, Restdctive Tradc

Practices (RTPs) and

Consumer protection

guidclines

Developed one (l) Restrictive

Trade Practices and one (l)
Consumer Protection

6uideline

837o cases concludcd against

I target of95%
Target not achieved

due to dclay in
rcleasc ofrasources

Csscs concludcd as a 7o

of total investigations

6070 cases on restrictive trade

practices invcstigated and

finalized

TaBet schieved70 ofcrses on restrictive

trade practiccs

investigated and fi nalized

l00o/o appeals on competition
determined achicvcd

Tsrget 8chicved

To promote snd sustain

cordpetition
Sustained high
productivity and

compctitive
markets

% ofAppcals on

Competition Dete.mincd
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7. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Report on Operational and Performancc financial performancc of thc organization for thc last

three-to-five-year period

Oporational Performance

Operational performance is examined from thLree main indicators. These are: (i) Performance Contract

M-anagemeni (ii) Effectiveness in implementation of National Treasury Strategic Plal:, 2018/19-2022123,

and (iii) Human Resource Staff Capacity.

Performance Contract Management

Atthough the Ministries have been completing the performance contracting cycle that ends with

announ;ement ofresults by the Ministry responsible for Public Service, announcement ofresults have rrct

been undertaken except for the two FYs (FY 201912020 and 2020/2021).

In the Financial Year 2019/2020, the National Treasury and Economic Planning was ranked as the best

performing Ministry with a Composite Score of 3.0209. This means that TNT&P achieved but not fully
att its set pt targets resulting to a score of between 70 - 100% which translates to Good Performance.

In the Financial Year 20201 21, the National Treasury and Ptanning was ranked 56 in the Top Five
performing Ministries with an Average Composite Score of 3.2124 which is a good performance. There

was a decline in performance compared to that of 201912020 whereby TNT&P was ranked the best

performing Ministiy with a Composite Score of 3.0209. A summary of performance contract ranking is

given in table 2 below.

Table 2: Summary of performance of the National Treasury and Economic Planning in ranking of
,Ministries D artments and A ncies ovor three Financial Years

2018/19 2019nO20 2020/2021

Minlitrles were not ranked Overall Score; 3.0209
Overall Rank: Position I
Overall 6rade; 7 O-lOOo/o

Performance cateSory: Cood
Core Mandate Score: L8089
Core Mandate Rank: Position 3

Overall Score: 3.2124 Overall Rank:

Position 5
Overall 6rade: 7 O-lOOo/o

Performance category: Good

Core Mandate score: Not measured

Core Mandate Rank: Not ranked among

the 5 bert performing MinirtrieJ

Effectiveness in implementation of Strategic Plan 2018'2023

The National Treasury implemented its Strategic Plan under four (4) Key Result Areas (KRAs) namely:

(i) Stable Macro Economic Environment, (ii) Resource Mobilisation for financing public expenditure, (iii)
i)evelopment planning, budgeting and intergovernmental relations and (iv) Institutional effrciency and

effectiveness.

Effectiveness measures considered achievement of planned outcomes and outputs against set targets' In

this regard the National Treasury achieved overall effectiveness level of 73% implementation of the

objectives under the four KRAs. On the Key Result Areas, the National Treasury recorded the following
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level of effectiveness: Stable and sustainable macroeconomic environment - 90oZ; Resource mobilization
for financing public expenditure realised 74 o%; Development planning, budgeting, and intergovernmental
relations, 80%o; and Institutional efficiency and effectiveness- 29%. KRA 4: Institutional efficiency and

effectiveness recorded lowest level ofeffectiveness in achievement ofset objectives. This is attributed to
inadequate resources to effectively irnplement targets.

Human Resource Staff Capacity

Human resource capacity is a component ofoperational efficiency in the National Treasury. In this regard,

the National Treasury currently operates at 58 per cent staff capacity in relation to authorized
establishment. This is a decline from staffoperational capacity of 65.6 percent in 2018/19. The decline in
staff capacity is attributed to slow succession management in relation to increasing staff requirement as

indicated by authorized establishment. Chart 8 below illustrates the current staff capacity against

authorised establishment.

Chart 8: Huqr4n rg!_o_Efqe_ 93p49{y {qf tt e pc_r,pC Zl\Q!!9 !9 2IZZDS
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In terms of cadre, the National Treasury ratio of technical to support staff currently stands at 64.52 per
cent of in-post staff against a target of 70 per cent. This ratio has remained fairly stable at an average of
67 per cent over the period 2018/19-2022/223. Specifically, the technical staff requirement is 3,278 (70
% of staff authorized establishment). However, the current technical staff in-post is 1,753 (53 per cent of
technical staff requiremen!. Chart 9 below illustrates the composition of the National Treasury staff
disaggregated by technical and support cadre
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Chart 9: The Nationat Treasury staff _cgmposltrgqpy !eq!niq4t and support cadre
l--.---
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Financial Performance
Over the last five-year period, the National Treasury recorded mixed trend in performance in financial

stewardship relating to absorption of GoK funds and extemally funded resources as well as in A-in-A.
Charts 10, 11 and 12 below indicate the specific performance in the mentioned areas'

Overall budget execution for thc National Treasury for the period 20l8ll9'2022n3
Chart 10 illustrates the National Treasury financial performance in relation to expenditure for the period

21l8tl9- 2022/23. The allocations to the National Treasury recorded increasing trend with highest

allocations recorded in the FY 2021122. The increase in allocation in the FY 2021/22 is attributed to
transferring of marine and transport functions to the National.Treasury. The same functions have since

..been transierred back,to the Minisry of iransport and Infrastnjcture in the FY 2\2lk4. 
.,

Chart 10: The National Treasury total budget against expenditure for 20l8ll9- 2022n3 (KSh.
Billions
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Performancc of GoK funded rcsources for the pcriod 2018119'2022123

An analysis ofbudget performance for the National Treasury for the period 2018119 to 2022123 for GoK

funded resources indicate increasing allocation over time. The highest allocation ofKSh. 112. billion was

recorded in the FY 2021122. This was due to transfer of marine and transport functions to the National

, Treasury by executive order. There was a decline in allocations in FY 22123 when t}re same functions

were transferred back to the Ministry of Transport and Infrastructure. The performance of GoK funded

resources is shown in Chart I I .

Chart l1: Performance of GoK funded resources for the d 20t8lt9-2022123 Billions
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Performance of Externally Funded resources
12.67 10.80 10.s2

2022/23

Performance of externally fundod resources for the period 2018/19-2022123
The extemally funded resources rose,sharply in the FY 2020121 before gradually decreasing in the..

subsequent years. The rise was due to mobilization of additional resources to combat the COVID 19

pandemic. Chart 12 highlights the performance of extemally funded resources for the period 2018/19-
2022123.
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Performance of Appropriation in Aid thc period 2018119'2022123

The National Treasury registered a sharp rise in A-in-A allocations in the FY year 2020/21. The rise in A-

in-A relates to development partner financing towards interventions to combat COVID 19 pandemic as

well as the transfer of the rail transport function to the National Treasury. Chart l3 below illustrates the

trend in the performance of A-in-A for the period 2018/19 to 2022123.

Chart 13: Performance of A-in-A for the eriod 2018/l e -42] t 23 _(4s!. B! !!!q_n$
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The National Treasury Key Projects/ Investments implemented or ongoing indicating source ofFunds,
Project Status, Project Costs and amount spent so far

The Table below indicates a summaryof l3 key projects for the National Treasury indicating Project cost,

source offunds, cumulative expenditure to'date and project status'

Project
Timelines

Estimated Cost of the Proiect (KSh. Millions)Project
Name

Actusl
cumulativ
e

Expenditu
re (As of
30rh June
2022n3
(b)

Outstand
ing
Balance
as of30th
June
2022123
(a-b)

GoK Total
Allocati
ons to
Date

Forei
gn

Start
Date

End
Date

o/o of
Time
Elaps
€d

Totsl
Project
Cost (a)

Project Code
& Title

830.3 9.169.7010,000.0
0

3,000r0,000.00 08n212020 Continuo
u5

200/0Crcdit Guarsntec
Sch.mc

510.008500 8300 83003309^v 2012 Continuo
us

Lff/" 8,810.00Kcnya Elcotronic
sinSle window
S)5tcm

Table 3: K ro ects im lemented the National Treasu
i/No.

Project
Completir
Rste as oI
3Oth June
2022t23

810/.2.

3
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Estimated Cost of the Project (KSh. Millions)S/No. Proj ect
Name

Project
Timelines

4,978.00942.19 225,000.00 0 50004 lmplcmcntation
ofthc c-
procuremcnl
systcm for 0lc
Covcmment of
Kcnya

5^D021 5/1n076 25%

200.08 0 I3,405.0013,405.00 I t005 2400Rural Kcnya
Finlncirl
lnclusion Focility

6Dn022 t2ntn02
E

Ar/o5

18.299.229664.24 14831.36 9296.97s8% 21,596.19 t793t.9
I

5. Olobal Fund HIV 7/v2021 6R0D024

4,481.44r3l?.85 1782.59 I I I2.6958./, 5,594. r3 4276.287 Clobal Fund TB 7^n021 6R0n024

1064 23 878.16 2,762.513,641.21 2323.42 l3l?.85OlobalFund
Mslaria

7ltD02t 680n024 58%8.

t396.05 585.65 4,414.3s9S% 5,000.00 5000 09 l07l107900,
Infrastmcturc
Financ! Public
Private
Partncrsfiips
Projcct -
Additional
Financing
flFPPP.AF)

20t7 6^n023

87881 62,1i9.000 r50000 7385t1ltDlt4 3oth June
2024

850/. 150,000.00l0 l07t 10220 t:
srdcgic
Invcstments in
Public Entitics

3112 2466 23,636.007 

^t2018
50./. 26.102.00 I r89 249t3ll t07tt00t0l:

Suppon to Public
Financial
Managcmcot
(PFMR)

6nD02t

18.5 66.0084 50 84.5 0 84.5t7 l07lll040Crccn
Climste Fund
Rcrdincs Proicct

1 0n02t 3/10n024 66.60%

3950 ' 350 5,650.001ff/o 6,000.00 6000l3 107106600
Strategic .,r

Rcsponsc lo
Public Initialivcs

I Jul2019 3oth'Junc
a024

25%

5V6

340/.

20vo

240/.

85./.

590/.

700/n

22.30o1

5.806/.

Future Developments and other information
In the next five (5) Year period, the National Treasury is planning to implement key policies and strategies as

follows:

Stable and sustainable macrocconomic environment
Under this Key Result Area, the National Treasury plans to:

(D Develop and implement macroeconomic and fiscal policies that support stable macroeconomic
environment and stimulate economic recovery to 5.6 percent growth inFY 2027 /28; boost the ratio of
gross national savings to GDP to 13.3 percent in the FY 2027 /28; increase the ratio of national
investments to 18.6 percent of GDP intheFY 2027 /281,

(iD Oversee implementation of monetary policy that targets to maintain inflation rate at 5 percent +/-2.5
percent; low and stable lending interest rates; stable and competitive exchange rates; and strong official
foreign exchange reserves;
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(iii) Develop and implement tax policy and administrative measures designed to gradually reduce the fiscal
deficit including grants to 3.5 percent ofGDP in the FY 2027128; increase revenue collection to 18.5

percent ofGDP inFY 2027 /28; and reduce total expenditures and net lending to 22.3 percent as a share

of GDP in the FY 2027128;

(iv) Establish the Kenya Credit Guarantee Company to administer CGS - This will entail establishing a

functional Credit Guarantee Company to administer Credit Guarantee Scheme (CGS);

(v) Agricultural and Rural Financial Inclusion (RK- FINFA) - this will enhance access, efficiency and

stability of agricultural and rural finance by smallholder farmers and agribusiness MSME; and,

(vi) Implement the Green Financial Markets programme to enhance access to green finance and strengthen

the enabling environment to attract green finance and investments needed to transition to a low-carbon,

climate resilient and green economy.

Resourcc mobilization for financing public expenditure

Under this Key Result Area, the National Treasury plans to:

(i) Integrate Meridian Debt Management System with IFMIS- Development of integration Solutions and

training officers with new system and with CBK DHOW Central Securities Depository (CSD) System-
Development of integration Solutions and uploading of Domestic Debts in the system;

(ii) Develop a Resource Mobilization Strategy;

(iiD Review the Debt and Borrowing Policy to capture the emerging issues and changes in the operational

environment; and,
(iv) Implement the digitalization of Government services through the Digital Payments by enhancing the

capabilities and scope of the eCitizen payment platform.

Developm'ent Planning, budgetiirg and intergovernmrintal relations

This Key Result area aims to undertake the following:

(i) Business process automation to improve efliciency in National Treasury operations;

(iD Digitalization and digitization of Government process for effective service delivery and, revenue

enhancement;
(a) Strengthening the internal audit fiduciary assurance and advisory services for effective governance

process, internal control structures and risk management to increase the level of transparency,

effectiveness, efficiency, economy and accountability;
(b) Development and implementation of the Public Finance Management Reforms Strategy 2023-

2028;

(c) Enhancing participation ofmarginalized groups in public procurement by registration and capacity

building;
(d) Operationalize the Treasury Single Account to ensure efficient distribution ofcash balances; and,

(e) Upgrading and integration of Pension Management Information System for effective and elficient
processing and payment ofpension benefits.
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Institutional Efficiency and Effectiveness

Under this Key Result Area; the National Treasury will implement the following:

(i) Undertake Value for Money Audits;

(iD Installation of Visitors' mdnagement system and Integrated Security Management System at, the

National Treasury;

(iii) Development of a Disaster Recovery Plan;

(ir) Enhance the work environment for eflicient service delivery;

(r) Implement succession planning towards enhancing staff capacity to 80% of the authorized
establishment by lune 2027 and the ratio oftechnical to support from 65 per cent to 70 per cent by the

same period;

(vD Finalization of the Govemment Transport Policy and Scaling up of the government motor vehicle
leasing programme; and,

(vii) Finalization ofthe development ofthe e-GP system.
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8. ENVIRONMENTALAND SUSTAINABILITYREPORTING

The National Treasury's mandate is to formulate, implement and monitor prudent economic and financial
policies at national and county levels of govemment. The core values include customer/Citizen first,
delivering relevant goods and services, and improving operational excellence. Guided by the above
principles, we undertake the following:

Sustainability Strategy and Profi le

To ensure economic sustainability, the National Treasury put in place several measures geared towards
protecting the economy. Some ofthe key focus interventions are to: reduce the cost ofliving; createjobs;
achieve more equitable distribution of income; enhance social security; expand tax base for more revenue
for financing development; and increase foreign exchange earnings.

The economic performance for the period under review is against a background ofincreased uncertainties
in the global economic outlook, continuing geopolitical tensions and the pace of monetary policy
tightening amidst concerns about financial sector stability in the advanced economies. Nevertheless,

commodity prices in the global markets, particularly ofoil and food, have been easing due to improved
and functioning supply chains.

Kenya's economic growth for 2022 slowed down to 4.8 percent from 7.6 percent in 2021 due to the
adverse impact of the multiple shocks that affected the economy. The growth in 2022 was supported by

$owth in the services sectors while the agricultural sector contracted for the second consecutive year due
to the prolonged drought effect which also contributed to a slowdown in growths in the manufacturing as

well as that ofthe wholesale and retail trade sectors.

In 2023, the economy is expected to rebound and expand by 5.5 percent from 4.8 percent in 2022 ar,d

maintain that pace over the medium term. This growth will be supported by a broad-based private sector
led growth, including continued strong performance of,the services sector and recovery in the agriculture
sector due to improved weather conditions during the March - May rain season. This growth outlook will
further be reinforced by the interventions being implemented by the Govemment, under the Bottom-Up
Economic Transformation Agenda (BETA).

In order to realize the aspirations of the Bottom-Up Economic Transformation Agenda, the National
Treasury will: Continue to maintain macroeconomic stability and enhance security to foster a secure and

conducive business environment for all Kenyans and their investments; Intensify national infrastructure
development and connectivity in roads, rail, port, energy and fibre optic infrastructure to lower the cost of
movement of people and goods, lower the cost of doing business thereby enhancing profitability of
businesses; Enhance investment in key economic sectors for broad based sustainable economic recovery
by promoting: agricultural transformation, growth in manufacturing, environmental conservation and

water supply, food security, climate change mitigation and adaptation, tourism recovery, and sustainable

land use and management. Food security and climate change will also become a focal point for policy
going forward. The National Treasury will expand access to quality social services in health, education

and appropriate social safety nets for the vulnerable population; and support the youth, women and persons

living with disability through Govemment-funded empowerment programs that leverage on partnerships

with private sector organizations.
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Environmental performance/climate change/mitigation of natural Disaster
The National Treasury has constituted a committee comprising officers from the key Departments of the

Ministry to oversee all matters relating to environmental sustainability. The Committee has since developed a

ministerial policy on the same in line with the National Policy on environmental management and participated

in planting trees thus contributing towards the l0 percent tree cover initiative. Additionally, to ensure a

conducive work environment, the National Treasury has contracted a company to manage cleaning and waste

disposa I services.

Employee welfare
Employee welfare is critical for effective implementation ofthe programmes and projects ofan organization.

Noting the importance of human resources, the National Treasury has a department established to handle

Human Resources Management and Development. The Ministry has also established a Human Resource

Management Advisory Committee and Departmental Training Committees that processes all the promotions,

discipline, training, appraisal and general employee matters in line with the Public Service guidelines and

procedures. Recruitment ofofficers is guided by the principles ofthe public service such as inclusivity among

others.

In addition, a committee on occupational safety and health has been established to follow up of the safety

conditions in the work place. In order to attract and retain competent officers, the National Treasury conducted

capacity building for the staffin various technical subjects and recruited officers at the entry grade to fill skilts
gaps and enhance human resource capacity.
During the review period, we implemented succession management plan by declaring vacant posts to be filled
by the Public Service Commission at the higher levels. This is in preparation for the exists anticipated in the

next two years arising from retirement of officers who will have attained the mandatory retirement age.

Further, the National Treasury has continued to build the capacity on the online staff appraisal management

system in collaboration with the Public Service Commission to ensure seamless implementation of the system.

Opcrational Practices/lVlarket place practices
The National Treasury is responsible for promoting fair trade practices in the economy. To ensure effective
implementation of this function asiigned by the Constitution, one of the prograinmes implemented by'the
Triasury is ensuiing that existing market'structures encourage cbmpetition and orderly bonduct ofbusiness in ''

order to support high productivity and competitive markets. This is undertaken mainly by the Competition
Authority of Kenya, a State Corporation under the National Treasury.

Further, to ensure fairness in the allocation of procurement contracts, the National Treasury ensures strict
adherence to the provisions ofthe Public Procurement and Assets Disposal Act and its regulations.

Community Engagements
Towards Corporate social responsibility, members of staff from the National Treasury participated in these
years Annual Kaptagat Tree planting exercise which was graced by His Excellency the President on l't July,
2023 in Elgeyo Marakwet. The two-day exercise saw over 30,000 seedlings planted at Kessup Forest Station
by the National Treasury staff, Corporates and members ofthe community.

To mitigate technological hazards, terrorism, fire and natural disasters, the National Treasury engaged a

professional security services firm contracted for purposes ofenhancing security in the Ministry. The National
Treasury continued to improve security within the building and its environs by use ofCCTV cameras installed
at the Treasury Building and at the entrances and maintained firefighting facilities at the premises in
collaboration with the State Department for Public Works.
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9. STATEMENT OF THE ASIAN WIDOWS AND ORPHANS PENSION FUND
MANAGEMENT R.ESPONSIBILITIES

Section 81 of the Public Finance Management Act, 2012 and the Asian Widows and Orphans' Pensions

Act, cap 193 require the Principal Secretary for the National Treasury to prepare financial statements in

respect ofthat Pensions Fund, which give a true and fair view ofthe state of iffairs ofthe Pensions Fund

at the end ofthe financial yearlperiod and the operating results of the Pensions Fund for that year/period.

The Principal Secretary for the National Treasury are also required to ensure that the Pensions Fund keeps

proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy the financial position ofthe Pensions

Fund. The Directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Pensions Fund'

The Principal Secretary for the National Treasury is responsible for the preparation and presentation ofthe

Asian Widows and Orphans Pensions Fund financial statements, which give a true and fair view of the

state ofaffairs ofthe Asian Widows and Orphans Pensions Fund for and as at the end ofthe financial ycar

(period) ended on June 30, 2023. This responsibility includes: (i) maintaining adequate financial

management arrangements and ensuring that these continue to be effective tkoughout the reporting

period; (ii) maintaining proper accounting records, which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time

the financial position of the Asian Widows and Orphans Pensions Fund; (iii) designing, implementing

arid maintaining intemal controls relevant tb the preparation and fair presentation of'the financial

statements, and ensuring that they are free from material misstatements, whether due to error or fraud;

(iv) safeguarding the assets of the Pensions Fund; (v) selecting ald applying appropriate accounting

policies; and (vi) making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances'

The Principal Secretary for the National Treasury accept responsibility for the Asian Widows and Orphans

Pensions Fund financial statements, which have been prepared using appropriate accounting policies

supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates, in conformity with International Public

Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS), and in the manner required by the PFM Act,20l2 and the Asian

Widows and Orphans' Pensions Act, cap 193. The Principal Secretary for the National Treasury are ofthe

opinion that the Pensions Fund financial statements give a true and fair view ofthe state ofPensions Fund

transactions during the financial year ended June 30, 2023, and ofthe Pensions Fund financial position as

at that date. The Principal Secretary for the National Treasury frrther confirm the completeness of the
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accounting records maintained for the Pensions Fund, which have been relied upon in the preparation of the

Pensions Fund financial statements as well as the adequacy ofthe systems of intemal financial control.

The Principal Secretary for the National Treasury indicate that the Asian Widows and Orphans Pensions

Fund has ceased, its operatidn. Parliament vide lsq Cabinet Meeting- 2021 held on 25s February, 2021 
,

directed the National Treasury to close Asian Widows and Orphans Pension Fund effective 256 iebruary, ,

2021. These financial statements have therefore not been prepared under the going concem basis since

there is an order to cease operations.

The fund has zero assets and zero liabilities as at 306 1we,2022. The Fund therefore ceases to operate

with effect from 30tr June, 2022.

Approval of the financial statements

The Asian Widows and Orphans Pensions F

Secretary for the National Treasury on

und financial statements were approved by the Principal

I t L 2023 and signed on its behalfby:

)

PRIN SECRETARY
, cBs MICH

PENSIONS

A. KA6IKA, EBS FRANCIS MUYUNZU

ARY/D|RECIOR OF tCPAK NO. 6175

DEPUTY ACCT. GENERAL
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR.GENERAL ON ASIAN WIDOWS'
PENSIONS FUND FOR THE YEAR ENDEO 30 JUNE, 2023
TREASURY

AND ORPHANS'
THE NATIONAL

PREAMBLE

I draw your aftention to the contents of my report which is in three parts:

A. Report on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
arc faily presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
accounting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on the financial statements.

B. Report on Lalvfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
guidelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,
efficient, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure Government
achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for the intended purpose.

C. Report on Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
which considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
operations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, the risk
management environment and the internal controls, developed and implemented by
those charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the
entaty.

An unmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
relevant laws and regulations and that its internal controls, risk management and
governance systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial
year under review.

The three parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
responsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution, the
Public Finance Management AcL,2012 and the Public Audit Act, 201 5. The three parts of
the report, when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General.

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of Asian Widows' and Orphans'
Pensions Fund set out on pages 1 lo 22, which comprise of the statement of financial
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position as at 30 June, 2023, and the statement of financial performance, statement of !
changes in net assets, statement of cash flows and statement of comparison of budget
and actual amounts for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information in accordance with the provisions of Article 229
of the Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public Audit Act, 2015. I have obtained
all the information and explanations which, to the best of my knowledge and belief, were
necessary for the purpose of the audit.

ln my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Asian Widows' and Orphans' Pensions Fund as at 30 June, 2023, and ol
its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with
the lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual Basis) and comply with the
Public Finance Management Ad, 2012.

Basis for Opinion

The audit was conducted in accordance with lnternational Standards of Supreme Audit
lnstitutions (lSSAls). I am independent of the Asian Widows' and Orphans' Pensions
Fund Management in accordance with ISSAI 130 on Code of Ethics. I have fulfilled other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with other ethical
requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya. I believe
that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to
report in the year under review.

Other of Matter

lmpending Winding-Up of the Fund

As previously reported, the Fund has been dormant since June, 2002 when the only
surviving beneficiary passed on. The Asian Windows' and Orphans' Pensions (Repeal)
4c1,2022 came into effect on 21 March, 2022 allowing Management to commence the
winding up process of the Fund in accordance with Regulation 209(2) of the Public
Financial Management (National Government) Regulations, 2015 and the Asian Widows'
and Orphans'Pensions (Repeal) Acl,2022. As guided by Section 24(9)(c) of the Public
Finance Management Ad, 2012 and Section 4(e) of the Asian Widows' and Orphans'
Pensions (Repeal) Act, 2022, the winding up process, currently ongoing, will culminate in
the submission of the Fund's final statement of accounts to Parliament by the Cabinet
Secretary, The National Treasury.

However, and as previously reported, the winding up of the Fund has taken an unduly
long period of time.
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REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) ot the Constitution, based on the audit procedures
performed, lconfirm that, nothing has come to my attention to cause me to believe that
public resources have not been applied lawfully and in an effective way.

Basis for Conclusion

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The standard requires that I

comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance
about whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the
financial statements are in compliance, in all material respects, with the authorities that
govern them. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for my conclusion.

REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, based on the audit
procedures performed, I confirm that, nothing has come to my attention to cause me to
believe that internal controls, risk management and overall governance were not effective.

Basis for Conclusion

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSAI 2330. The standards
require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective
processes and systems of internal control, risk management and overall governance were
operating effectively, in all material respects. I believe that the audit evidence I have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Responsibilities of Management and those Charged with Governance

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual
Basis) and for maintaining effective internal controls as Management determines are
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and overall governance.

ln preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Fund's ability to continue to sustain its services, disclosing as applicable, matters related
to sustainability of services and using the applicable basis of accounting unless
Management is aware of the intention to abolish the Fund or to cease operations.
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Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit Act,
2015.

ln addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are
in compliance with the authorities which govern them and that public resources are
applied in an effective way.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Fund's financial
reporting process, reviewing the effectiveness of how Management monitors compliance
with relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes
and systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to overall
governance and risk management and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the
control environment.

Auditor-General's Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error
and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls will always detect
a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

ln addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, I consider internal controls in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and overall governance processes and systems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) oi the Constitution. My consideration of
the internal controls would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal controls that
might be material weaknesses under the lSSAls. A material weakness is a condition in

which the design or operation of one or more of the internal controls components does
not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
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occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls, I exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit l also:

. ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the applicable basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Fund's
ability to continue to sustain its services. lf I conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
I am required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Fund to cease to continue
to sustain its services.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the Fund to express an opinion on the financial statements.

. Perform such other procedures as I consider necessary in the circumstances.

I communicate with the Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal controls that are identified during the audit.
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also provide Management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
uirements regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships

nd other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independene and
ere applicable, related safeguards.

CPA BS
UDITOR{iENERAL

alrobl

3 December, 2023
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The National Tre€sury & Economic Planning

Asian Wldows rnd Orphrns Pcrslo[s Furd
Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2023

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3OTH

JUNE 2023

Note 2022n023 zozy2ozz

RECEIPTS

Kshs. Kshs.

Dividend Income

Total Receipt

PAYMENTS

Payment ofPensions

TOTAL PAYIVIENTS

SIJRPLUS(DEfl CTD FOR TIIE
YEAR

The Accounting policies and explanatory notes to these financial statements an integral part

ofthe financial statements. The financial st&tements were approved on ,- 2023

and signed by:

l(IPToo, cBs
AL SECRETARY ICPAK NO. 6175

DEPUTY ACCT, GENERAL

)
D
P

I



The Nstionsl T.easury & Economic Planning
Asisn Widows and Orph8[s Pcnslons Fund
Annual Report and Financial Statem€nts for the year cnded 30 June 2023

12. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AT 3OTH JUNE 2023

The aocounting policies and explanatory notes to these financial statem

ofthe financial statements. The financial slatements were approved on,

and signed by:

ents fqrm an intesral oart
lL -.zazt

DR. SKI o, cBs
PRINCIPAL SECRETARY ICPAK NO. 6175

DEPUTY ACCT. GENERAL

Note 2022n023 2021D022

Kshs. Kshs

CURRENT ASSETS

Over contribution to fund suspense 5

NET ASSETS

FINANCED BY:

Government contributions

Personal contributions

NilTotal NiI
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The N8tionsl Tressury & Economic Planning

Asisn Wldows and Orphrns Pcnslons Fund
Annual Report and Financial Stalemcnts for the year ended 30 June 2023

13. STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS F'OR TIIE YEAR ENDED 3OTH

JIJNE 2023

Notes
Governmetrt
Contribution

Retairired

Earning
Totel

Kshs. Kshs. Kshs,

As at July l, 2021 1,616,470 t,616,470

SurpluVloss

Adjustment during the
year

( 1,616,470) (1,616,470)

As at June 30, 2022 Nit Nil

As al July 1,2022 Nit MI

Adjustment during the
year (Prior year

Adjustment)

Nit

Surplus/loss

As at June 30, 2023 Nil

,|n
The accounting lolicies and explanatory notes to these financial statements

ofthe financial statements. The financial statements were approved on

and signed by

D HRIS KTPTOO, CBS cIs
PRINCIPAL SECRETARY ICPAK o.6l7s

DEPI'TY ACCT. GENERAL

fTE integral part
2023

3



The National Treasury & Economic Planning
Ashn Widows sod Orphans Pcnslons Fund
Annual Report and Financial Statcments for thc year ended 30 June 2023

14. STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3OTH JUNE 2023

2022n023' 2021D022

Notes Kshs. Kshs.

Receipts for operating income

Miscellaneous receipts

Net Cash Flow operating activities

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENT

Cash and cash equivalent and
BEGINNING of the year

Cash and cash equivalent and END
of the year

The accounting policies and explanatory notes to these financial statements anI integral part

ofthe financial statements. The financial statements were approved on 2023 and

signed by:

I

al,) -ffixglsl-. uvruYuNzu
ICPAK NO. 6T75
DEPUTY ACCT. GENERAL

DR CBS
PRINCIPAL SECRETARY

4



The National Treasury & Economic Planning

Asian Widows 8nd Otphrns Pensions Fund
Annual Report and Financisl Statements for the year ended 30 June 2023

15. STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGDT AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3OTH JUNE 2023

Total
Expenditure
Surplus for
the period

Note

The fund is dormant and awaiting wounding up, hence nil balance.

The accormting policies and explanatory notes to these financial statements

ofthe financial statements. The financial statements were approved on

signedby: .. .

DR. KIPTOO, CBS F

fogp, an integral part

I l\L .2023 and

)

PRINCIPAL SECRETARY

UYUNZU
ICPAK NO. 6I75
DEPUTY ACCT. GENERAL

Original
budget

Adjustmint Final budget
Actual on

comparable
'basis

Performance

differencg

%of
utilization

Revenue Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs

Dividend NiI Nit Nil Nit

Total income Nil Nil Nil Nit

Expenses

Dependant
Pension

Nil

NiI

Nil Nil Nit

Nil Nil Nil
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The National Treasury & Economic Planning
Asian Widows and Orphans Pensions Fund
Annual Repon and Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2023

16. NOTES TO THE FINAAICIAL STATEMENTS

1. GENERALINFORMATION

Asian Widows and Orphans Fund is established by and derives its authority and accountability

from Asian Widows and Orphans Pensions Act Cap 193. The entity is wholly owned by the

Government of Kenya and is domiciled in Kenya. The entity's principal activity is payment of

dependant pension.

2 STATEMENT OF'COMPLIANCtr AND BASIS O[ PRtrPARATION

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for the measurement

at re-valued amounts ofcertain items ofproperty, plant and equipment, marketable securities and

financial instruments at fair value, impaired assets at their estimated recoverable amounts and

actuarially determined liabilities at their present value. The preparation offinancial statements in

conformity with International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS) altows the use of

estimates and assumptions. It also requires management to,exercise judgement in the process of

applying the entity's accounting policies. The areas involving.,a higher degree ofjudgment or

complexity, or where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are

disclosed in Note 5.

The financial statements have been prepared and presented in Kenya Shitlings, which is the

functional and reporting curency ofthe Asian Widows and Orphans Pensions Fund,

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the PFM Act, and International

Public Sector Accounting Standards (PSAS). The accounting policies adopted have been

consistently applied to all the years presented.
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The National Treasury & Economic Planning

Asian Widows and Orphans Pensions Fund
Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year €nded 30 Junc 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a) Reven ue recognition

i) rRevenue from non-exchange transactions

Fees, taxes and fincs

The entity recognizes revenues from fees, taxes and fines when the event occurs and the

asset recognition criteria are met. To the extent that there is a related condition attached

that would give rise to a liability to repay the amount, deferred income is recognized

instead ofrevenue. Other non-exchange revenues are recognized when it is probable that

the future economic benefits or service potential associated with the asset will flow to

the entity and the fair value ofthe asset can be measured reliably.

Transfcrs from other government entities

Revenues from non-exchange transactions with other government entities are measured

at fair value and recognized on obtaining control of the asset (cash, goods, services and

property) if the transfer is free from conditions and it is probable that the economic

benefits or service potential related to the asset wi[[ flow to the entity and can be measured

reliably. Recurrent grants are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income'

' Development/capital' grants are recognized'in the statement of financial position and

Tiithoriz in the statement'of comprehensive incoihe over the useful life ijf the assets that

has been acquired using such funds

ii) Revenue from exchange transactions

Rendering of services

The entity recognizes revenue from rendering of services by reference to the stage of

completion when the outcome ofthe transaction can be estimated reliably. The stage of

completion is measured by reference to labour hours incurred to date as a percentage of

total estimated labour hours.

Where the contract outcome cannot be measured reliably, revenue is recognized only to

the extent that the expenses incurred are recoverable.
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The National Treasury & Economic Planning
Aslsn Widows arld Orphstls Pe[sions Fund
Annual Report and Financial Slatements for the year ended 30 June 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOI.'NTING POLICIES (CONTINI.JED)

Saleofgoods r I r

Revenue from the sale ofgoods is recognized when the significffit risks and rewards oforlnership

have been transfered to the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods and when the amount of

revenue can be measured reliably and it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential

associated with the transaction will flow to the entity.

Interest incomc

Interest income is accrued using the effective yield method. The effective yield discounts

estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net

carrying amount. The method applies this yield to the principal outstanding to determine interest

income each period,

Dividends

Dividends or similar distributions must be recognized when the shareholder's or the entity's right

to receive payments is established,

Rental income

Rental incorpe arising from operating leases on investmgnt properties is accou4ted for on a

straight-line basis over the lease terms and included in revenue.

b) Budget information

There was no approved budget for FY 2022-2023 by the Nationat Assembly, since the fund ceased

its operations.

Current income tax

Current income tax sssets and liabilities for the current period are measurcd at the amount

expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used

to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in

the area where the Entity operates 8nd generates taxable income.
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The National Treasury & Economic Planning
Asisn \ryidows atrd Orphans Pensions Fund
Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Curyent income tax relating to items recognized directly in net assets is recognized in net assets

and not in the statement of finaricial performance. Manhgement periodically e aluates positions

taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject

to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate'

c) Taxes

Deferred tox

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases

ofassets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting

date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except in respect of

taxable temporary differences associated with investments in controlled entities, associates and

interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be

controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences' will not reverse in the' foreseeable

future

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of

unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that

it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary

differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized,

except in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in controlled

entities, associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognized only to the

extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and

taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

9



The National Treasury & Economic Planning
Asian Wldows and Orphans Persions Fund
Annual Repod and Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCI,AL STATEMENTS (CONTINTJED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOL'NTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the

extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or

part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized, Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at

each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable

profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the

year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have

been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date,

Defered tax relating to items recognized outside surplus or deficit is recognized outside surplus

or deficit. Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction in net

assets.

Deierred tax assets and defirred tax liabilities are dffset ifa legally enforiUable right exists to set '

offcurent tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same

taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Sales tax

Expenses and assets are recognized net ofthe amount ofsales tax, except:

F When the sales tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the

taxation authority, in which case, the sales tax is recognized as part ofthe cost ofacquisition

ofthe asset or as part ofthe expense item, as applicable

F When receivables and payables are stated with the amount ofsales tax included

The net amount ofsales tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included

as part ofreceivables or payables in the statement offinancial position.
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The National Treasury & Economic Planning
Asien Widows and Orphans Pensions Fund
Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCI,AL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOL'NTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

d) Investment property

Invbstment properties are lneasured initially at ccist, including transaction costs. The carrying

amount includes the replacement cost of components ofan existing investment property at the

time that cost is incurred ifthe recognition criteria are met and excludes the costs ofday{o-day

maintenance of an investment property.

Investment property acquired through a non-exchange transaction is measured at its fair value at

the date ofacquisition. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are measured using

the cost model and are depreciated over a 3O-year period.

Investment properties are derecognized either when they have been disposed of or when the

investment propcrty is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit or service

potential is expected frofir its disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the

carrying amount ofthe asset is recognized in the surplus or deficit in the period ofde-recognition.

''transfers 
are made to o'i from investment proptrty only when there is i change in use

e) Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at cost Iess accumulated depreciation and impairment

Iosses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition ofthe items. When

significant parts ofproperty, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the entity

recognizes such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them

accordingly. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying

amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. AII

other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in surplus or deficit as incurred. Where an asset

is acquired in a non-exchange transaction for nil or nominal consideration the asset is initially

measured at its fair value.
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The National Treasury & Economic Planning
Asian Widows attd Orphans Pensions Fund
Annual Report and Financial Statements for thc year ended 30 June 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCI,AL STATEMENTS (CONTINI.JED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

f) Leases

Finance leases are leases that lransfer substantially all of the risks and benefits incidental to

ownership ofthe leased item to the Entity. Assets held under a finance lease are capitalized at the

commencement ofthe lease at the fair value ofthe leased property or' if lower, at the present value

ofthe future minimum lease payments. The Entity also recognizes the associated lease liability at

the inception ofthe lease. The liability recognized is measured as the present value ofthe future

minimum lease payments at initial recognition

Subsequent to initial recognition, lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and

reduction ofthe lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance

ofthe liability. Finance charges are recognized as finance costs in surplus or deficit.

An asset held under a finance lease is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if

there is no reasonable certainty that the Entity will obtain ownership ofthe asset by the end ofthe

lease term, the asset is.depreciated over the shorter ofthe estimated useful life ofthe asset and.the

leaqe term.

Operating leases are leases that do not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to

ownership of the leased item to the Entity. Operating lease payments are recognized as an

operating expense in surplus or deficit on a straight-line basis over the lease term'

g) Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognized at cost. The cost of intangible assets

acquired in a non-exchange transaction is their fair value at the date ofthe exchange. Following

initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and

accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalized

development costs, are not capitalized and expenditure is reflected in surplus or deficit in the

period in which the expenditure is incurred.

The useful tife ofthe intangible assets is assessed as either finite or indefinite'
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The National Treasury & [rconomic Planning
Asian Widows and Orphans Pensions Fund
Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year endcd 30 June 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SICNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

h) Research and development costs

The Entity expenses research costs as incuned. Development costs on an individual project are

recognized as intangible assets when the Entity can demonstrate:

F The technical feasibility ofcompleting the asset so that the asset will be available for use or

sale

F Its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset

F How the asset will generate future economic benefits or service potential

! The availability ofresources to complete the asset

The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development.

Following initial recognition of an asset, the asset is caried at cost less any accumulated

amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization of the asset begins when

development is complete and the asset is available for use, It is amortized over the period ol
expected future benefit. During the period of development, the asset is tested for impairment

annually with any impairment losses recognized immediately in surplus or deficit.

i) Financialinstruments

a) Financial ossels

I nitial recognitio n and meds urume nl

Financial assets within the scope of IPSAS 29 Financial Instruments: Recognition and

Measurement are classified as financial assets at fair value through surplus or deficit, loans and

receivables, held-to-maturity investments or available-for-sale financial assets, as appropriate.

The Entity determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments

that are not quoted in an active market. After initial measurement, such financial assets are

subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less impairment.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and

fees or costs that are an integral part ofthe effective interest rate. Losses arising from impairment

are recognized in the surplus or deficit.
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The National 'Ireasury & Economic Planning
Asian Widows 8nd Orphans Pcnsions Fund
Aonual Report and Financial Statcments for the year cndcd 30 June 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Held-lo-nralu A

Ncjn-derivative financial Assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities are

classified as held to maturity when the Entity has the positive intention and ability to hold it to

maturity. After initial measurement, heldto-maturity investments are measured at amortized cost

using the effective interest method, less impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into

account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the

effective interest rate. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in surplus or deficit.

Imp airme nt of fi nanc ia I uss els

The Entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset

or an entity offinancial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a entity offinancial assets is deemed

to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result ofone or more

events that has occurred after the initial recognition ofthe asset (an incurred 'loss event') and that

loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows ofthe financial asset or the entity of

financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include the following

indicators:

i) Financial instruments (Continued)

F The debtors or a entity ofdebtors are experiencing significant financial difficulty

F Default or delinquency in interest or principal payments

F The probability that debtors will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization

)> observable data indicates a measurable decrease in estimated future cash flows (e.g. changes

in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults)

b) Financial liabilities

Inilidl recognilion dnd measuremenl

Financial liabilities within the scope of IPSAS 29 are classified as financial liabilities at fair value

through surplus or deficit or loans and borrowings, as appropriate. The Entity determines the

classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition. All financial liabilities are recognized

initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings, plus directly attributable transaction

costs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCI,AL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Loans and borrowing

After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and bonowings are subsequently measured at

amortized cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognized in surplus or

deficit when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the effective interest method

amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premiurn on acquisition and

fees or costs that are an integral part ofthe effective interest rate.

j) Inventories

Inventory is measured at cost upon initial recognition. To the extent that inventory was received

through non-exchange transactions (for no cost or for a nominal cost), the cost ofthe inventory is

its fair value at the date of acquisition.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and conditions are accounted for,

as follows:

) Raw materials: purchase cost using the weighted average cost method

proportion of manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity, but

excluding borrowing costs.

i) Inventories(Continued)

After initial recognition, inventory is measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value.

However, to the extent that a class of inventory is distributed or deployed at no charge or for a

nominal charge, that class of inventory is measured at the lower of cost and current replacement

cost.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations, less the

estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale, exchange, or

distribution.

Inventories are recognized as an expense when deployed for utilization or consumption in the

ordinary course ofoperations ofthe Entity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINTJED)

k) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Entity has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a

result ofa past event, it is probable that an outflow ofresources embodying economic benelits or

service potential will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of

the amount ofthe obligation.

Where the Entity expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an

insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset only when the

reimbursement is virtually certain.

The expense relating to any provision is presented in the statement of financial performance net

of any reimbursement.

l) Conlingent liabilities

The Entity does not recognize a contingent liability, but discloses details of any contingencies in

the notes to the financial statements, unless the possibility ofan outflow ofresources embodying

economic benefits or service potential is remote.

m)'Contingenl assets

The Entity does not recognize a contingent asset, but discloses details of a possible asset whose

cxistence is contingent on the occurrence or non-occurrence ofone or more uncertain future events

not wholly within the control of the Entity in the notes to the financial statements. Contingent

assets are assessed continually to ensure that developments are appropriately reflected in the

financial statements. If it has become virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits or

service potential will arise and the asset's value can be measured reliably, the asset and the related

revenue are recognized in the financial statements ofthe period in which the change occurs.

n) Nature and purpose of reserves

The Entity creates and maintains reserves in terms ofspecific requirements.

l6



II

l'he National Treasury & Economic Planning
Asinn Widows f,nd Orphans Pensions Furd
Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year cnded 30 June 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCI,AL STATEMENTS (CONTINTJED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOI.]NTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

o) Changes in accounting policies and estimates

The Entity recognizes the effects ofchanges in accounting policy retrospectively. The effects of

changes in accounting policy are applied prospectively ifretrospective application is impractical.

p) Employee benefits

Retirement benefit plans

The Entity provides retirement benefits for its employees and directors. Defined contribution plans

are post-employment benefit plans under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a separate

entity (a fund), and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions ifthe

fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee service in

the curent and prior periods. The contributions to fund obligations for the payment of retirement

benefits are charged against income in the year in which they become payable.

Defined benefit plans are post-employment benefit plans other than defined-contribution plans.

The defined benefit funds are actuarially valued tri-annually on the projected unit credit method

basis. Deficits idehtified are recovered through lump sum payments or increased future

contributions on proportional basis to all participating employers. The contributions and lump sum

payments reduce the post-employment benefit obligation.

q) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially accounted for at the ruling rate ofexchange on the

date ofthe transaction. Trade creditors or debtors denominated in foreign currency are reported at

the statement of financial position reporting date by applying the exchange rate on that date.

Exchange differences arising from the settlement olcreditors, or from the reporting ofcreditors

at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the period, are recognized

as income or expenses in the period in which they arise.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCI,AL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

r) Borrowing costs

Borowing costs dre capitalized against qiralifying assets as part Ofproperty, plant and equipment.

Such borrowing costs are capitalized over the period during which the asset is being acquired or

constructed and borrowings have been incurred. Capitalization ceases when construction of the

asset is complete. Further borrowing costs are charged to the statement offinancial performance.

s) Related partics

The Entity regards a related party as a person or an entity with the ability to exert control

individually orjointly, or to exercise significant influence over the Entity, or vice versa. Members

ofkey management are regarded as related parties and comprise the directors, the CEO and senior

managers.

t) Serviccconcessionarrangeitents

The Entity analyses all aspects of service concession arrangements that it enters into in

determining the appropriate accounting treatment and disclosure requirements. In pa(icular,

where a private party contributes an asset to the arrangement, the Entity recognizes that asset

'when,andonlywhen,'itcontrolsorregulatesiheservicestheoperatoimustprovide,togetherivith

the asset, to whom it must provide them, and at what price. ln the case ofassets other than 'whole-

of-life' assets, it controls, through ownership, beneficial entitlement or otherwise - any significant

residual interest in the asset at the end ofthe arrangement. Any assets so recognized are measured

at their fair value. To the extent that an asset has been recognized, the Entity also recognizes a

corresponding liability, adjusted by a cash consideration paid or received.

u) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, short-term deposits on call

and highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less, which are readily

convertible to known amounts ofcash and are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Bank account balances include amounts held at the Central Bank of Kenya and at various

commercial banks at the end ofthe financial year. For the purposes ofthese financial statements,

cash and cash equivalents also include short term cash imprests and advances to l8uthorized

public officers and/or institutions which were not surrendered or accounted for at the end ofthe

financial year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCO{.JNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

v) Comparative figures

Where necessary comparative figures for the previous financial year have been amended or

reconfigured to conform to the required changes in presentation.

w) Subsequent events

There have been no events subsequent to the financial year end with a significant impact on the

financial statements for the year ended30 lune,2023.

4. SIGNIFICANT JTJDGMENT AND SOURCES OF ESTIMATION I,JNCERTAINITY

The preparation of the Entity's financial statements in conformity with IPSAS requires

management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of

revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure ofcontingent liabilities, at the end of

the reporting period. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in

outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount ofthe asset or liability affected

in future periods.

Estimates aqd assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the fuhrre and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the

reporting date, that have a significant risk ofcausing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts

ofassets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Entity based its

assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated financial statements

were prepared. However, existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments may

change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control ofthe Entity. Such

changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur. IPSAS 1.140
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NOTES TO THE FINANCTAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Useful lives and residual value,s

The useful lit es and residual values 6fassets are assessed uslng the following indicators to inform

potential future use and value from disposal:

! The condition ofthe asset based on the assessment ofexperts employed by the Entity

D The nature ofthe asset, its susceptibility and adaptability to changes in technology and

processes

F The nature ofthe processes in which the asset is deployed

! Availability of funding to replace the asset

F Changes in the market in relation to the asset

Provisions

Provisions were raised and management determined an estimate based on the information

available.

Provisions are measured at the management's best estimate ofthe expenditure required to settle

the obligation at the reporting date, and are discounted to present value where the effect is material.
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NOTES TO THE I'INANCIAL STATEMENTS

5 OVER CONTRIBIJTION TO FT'ND SUSPENSE

6 PRIORYEARADJUSTMENT

Nil adjustment

Note.

The firnd has nill assets and Nil liabilities and the l* Cabinet Meeting- 2021held on 25m

February granted winding up ofthe Fund.

2022n023 2021n022

Over contribution to fund(defi ciency)
suspense

Kshs. IGhs.

Accumulated excess expenditure over
mcome

Total Nil Nil
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17. ANNEXES

Annex I

PROGRESS ON FOLLOW {JP OFAI'DITOR RECOMMENDATIONS

The following is the summary of issues raised by the extemal auditor and management

comments that were proyided to the auditor. We have nominated focal persons to resolve the

various issues to be resolved.

Reference No,

on the External
Audlt Report

Par I
Failure to Wind Up
the Fund

Msnsgement
comments

Winding up granted

vide Ir Cabinet
Meeting-2021 hetd

on 25t Fcbruary,
2021.

Focal Point
person to
resolve the
issue

Michael A.
Kagika, EBS

Status:
(Resolved/Nol
Resolvetl)

Wounding up

of the fund
finalized.

Issue/Observations
from Auditor

DR
PRINCIPAL S ARY

aL)
---' I 

----ffiii6AMUYUNzu
ICPAK NO. 6175
DEPUTY ACCT. GENERAL
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